

CENTRUM Católica's Working Paper Series

No. 2012-09-0009 / September 2012

Influence of the Emotional Climate on the Affective Organizational Commitment

José Antonio Espinoza

CENTRUM Católica – Pontificia Universidad Católica del Perú

Working papers are in draft form. This working paper is distributed for purposes of comment and discussion only. It may not be reproduced without permission of the author(s).

INFLUENCE OF THE EMOTIONAL CLIMATE

ON THE AFFECTIVE ORGANIZATIONAL COMMITMENT

by

José Antonio Espinoza

CENTRUM CATOLICA

March 2012

Abstract

The impact of emotional events have been much studied in diverse settings: school, home, prisons, sports, etc but only few researches in working settings. The emotional climate is the aggregated of perceptions a person has regarding the affective relationships with his/her environment. These perceptions impact the worker's attitudes and subsequent behaviors, according to the Affective Events Theory proposed by Weiss and Cropanzano.

An instrument was built using a qualitative approach to define the categories and a quantitative analysis of data collected in Peruvian services organizations. The validation process included the correlation of the instrument outcomes with the affective component of the Meyer and Allen model of Commitment, and the moderation effect of the emotional intelligence quotient measured under the Bar-On model.

Table of Contents

Chapter 1: Introduction	5
Background of the Problem	5
Statement of the Problem	10
Purpose of the Study	11
Significance of the Problem	11
Nature of the Study	12
Research Questions	13
Hypothesis	14
Theoretical Framework	15
Assumptions	16
Scope and Limitations	16
Summary	17
References	18

Chapter 1: Introduction

This chapter describes the intention and approach used to study the relationship between the emotional climate and the affective component of the organizational commitment, moderated by the emotional quotient of Peruvian service workers. The background of the problem, the statement of the problem, the purpose of the study, the significance of the problem, and the nature of the study are developed here. Then the research questions and the theoretical framework that sustain the research are presented. The definition of terms, assumptions, limitations and delimitations, and a summary, close the chapter.

Background of the Problem

Organizational performance is based on the employees' decisions and behaviors. These behaviors are strongly influenced by the attitudes these persons carry on to the job, understanding attitude as a multi-component construct composed of three classes of evaluative responses: affective, cognitive, and conative (Mignonac & Herrbach, 2004). Then, being the attitudes strong influencers of behaviors, we can infer that affects (moods and emotions) are very important components to be considered when studying and explaining the behaviors in the workplace (Cropanzano, 2005). Moods are generalized affective states, and emotions more intense feeling specifically related to some event capable of disrupt our usual behavior because they are "…organized psychophysiological reactions to news about ongoing relationships with the environment" (Lazarus, 1991, p. 38). Notwithstanding the importance of the affects in the workplace this concept was not acknowledged until the 90's, influenced by the idea that emotional responses lead to

weak answers in human decisions (Loewenstein & Lerner, 2003). To concrete this approach, for instance, Simon (1947/1997) defined the concept of *bounded rationality* to recognize the limitations of human rational economic decisions, and, in the other side, he considered irrational the presence of emotions in this process, not only regarding the "economic man" but also with "his brother 'the administrative man'…" (1955, p. 99). Following that idea "economists as well as psychologists have mainly focused on cognitive constraints while neglecting to integrate the growing body of research on emotion which indicates that reason and emotion are interconnected" (Hanoch, 2002, p. 1). So the emerging behavioral decision theory, in late 60s did not considered emotions as a matter of interest when studying how human beings take decisions (Loewenstein & Lerner, 2003).

In opposition to the approach of ignoring the interrelationship between affects and reason, Mumby and Putnam considered that the power of emotions should be taken into account complementary to the way of knowing. "Researchers using the bounded rationality concept treat emotional experience (defined as the feelings, sensations, and affective responses to organizational situations) as a weak and handicapped appendage to reason, [and consequently] emotions are devaluated, trivialized, or treated as inappropriate at work" (1992, p. 471). So, as a reaction, they defined a new term, bounded *emotionality*, to extend the idea of a bounded rationality and accepted that "emotions can be analyzed systematically and should be included in models of organizational behavior and decision making" (Härtel, Zerbe & Ashkanasy, 2005, para.

7). So researchers began to devote a large interest in the role of affect in decision making and organizational behavior.

The many definitions of emotions all of them reflect the presence of several components in this complex process (Keltner & Lerner, 2003). So researchers have defined *affect* as a superior concept that encompasses all what we usually know as emotion. "The current broad conceptualization of affect incorporates... constructs such as mood, trait affect, specific emotions and emotional labor" (Barsade, Brief & Spataro, 2003, p. 5). Others consider that there are three different types of feelings, (a) those discrete, short lived *emotions*, like anger, surprise, etc.; (b) *moods* which are longer lasting feelings not necessarily related to an specific object, person or event, for instance sad, happy, etc.; and (3) dispositional or personality *traits* (Briner, 1999).

One application of the role of affects in the work environment is contained in the Meyer and Allen three-component model of organizational commitment, that is, in the construct that describes our decision to stay or not in an organization. This model affirm that in relationship to organizational commitment "there are three simultaneous mindsets encompassing affective, normative, and continuance organizational commitment" (Jaros, 2007, p.7). The affective commitment (AC) "[denotes] an emotional attachment to, identification with, and involvement in the organization..." (Meyer, Stanley, Herscovitch, & Topolnytsky, 2002, p. 20). Employees who show AC prefer to stay at the organization, with less absenteeism, performing better and showing good organizational citizenship behaviors (Meyer & Maltin, 2010). Meyer et al. (2002) studied the antecedents of the AC and found that work experiences and personal characteristics could

be drivers of that kind of commitment. Additionally it seems that the some dimensions of the organizational climate correlates with the AC (El-Kassar, Chams & Karkoulian, 2011). So personal characteristics and organizational climate are worth of being analyzed in relationship to get commitment from workers.

The concept of climate in the organizations is also a long time studied social construct that has revealed its usefulness. After all, "there appears to be some agreement on a climate approach to understanding organizational phenomena" (Schneider & Reicher, 1983, p. 25). Tagiuri (1968) defined climate in general as "the relatively enduring quality of the total environment that (a) is experienced by the occupants, (b) influences their behavior, and (c) can be described in terms of the values of a particular set of characteristics (or attributes) of the environment" (p. 25). When applied to an organization, Tagiuri notes that climate refers to the quality of the organization's internal environment, especially as experienced by the insider, but as also relevant to outsiders. But these researchers alert about two methodological issues. One is the multi-dimensional nature of the construct and the possibility, or not, of data aggregation. The multidimensional warning signals that there is not a unique climate but several climates in the organization, so it has to be very clear what climate is the research trying to figure out. The second issue is described as the question "how can we meaningfully aggregate individual's descriptions of their work environment so as to represent larger social units?" (p. 23). Then probably is not meaningful to correlate AC with the organizational climate as a whole; instead it should be done with an specific climate, such as the emotional climate.

By positive emotional climate, we mean an organizational environment where managers take into consideration the emotional needs and personal growth of employees and encourage the sharing of positive emotions. In that line one organizational emotional climate definition is "organizational environment where managers take into consideration the emotional needs and personal growth of employees and encourage the sharing of positive emotions" (Ozcelik, Langton, & Aldrich, 2008, p. 187). Yurtsever and De Rivera define emotional climate as "how a member of the organization perceives the feeling of the majority of its members in the situation constructed by the organization" (2010, p. 502). They designed and validated a questionnaire in Turkey but advise "to verify the factor structure of the questionnaire using larger samples, since [they used] less than four participants per item when at least five are desirable" (p. 512), and also "Further research is also encouraged in countries other than Turkey, since national culture may affect perceptions of the general feelings in organizational situations" (p. 512).

In terms of personal characteristics, one related construct directly related to affects is the emotional intelligence (EI), broadly described as how effectively deal with emotions (Geher & Renstrom, 2004). EI has been formally defined in multiple ways but there is certain kind of consensus around two types of definitions. One measures emotional traits defined as "a cluster of personality characteristics or non-cognitive abilities related to life success" (p. 7). The other type is based on mental or cognitive abilities not related to personality to recognize and express emotions. (MacCann, Matthews, Zeidner, & Roberts, 2004). Recognized as a trait based approach the Bar-On

model is defined as " a cross-section of interrelated emotional and social competencies, skills and facilitators that determine how effectively we understand and express ourselves, understand others and relate with them, and cope with daily demands" (Bar-On, 2006, p. 3). The Bar-On Model of Emotional-Social Intelligence (ESI). This model is operationalized by the Emotional Quotient Inventory (EQ-i) test producing five scores: intrapersonal, interpersonal, stress management, adaptability and general mood.

So it is remarkable to note that the organizational commitment defined by Meyer and Allen has been measured in many researches but mostly in USA settings, then there is a need to validate the cultural influences over that instrument. In the same vein the emotional climate measure of Yurtsever and De Rivera should be validated in other countries.

Statement of the Problem

The actual modern way of working and living makes people "... depend upon their workplaces for primary links for other people as well as for their social identity" (Jurkiewiz & Giacalone, 2004, p. 129). Organizational leaders need to know how to set up a positive and productive environment so to cope with the workers' emotional needs and expectations. This environment could make the difference between an affectively committed worker and one without intentions to stay. But without an objective measurement of that setting it is difficult to plan and control the effectiveness of the organization actions. So the objective of this research is to find a way to describe and compare the affective effects of different working setting over the workers, in terms of an emotional climate index. In this way organizations could monitor their effectiveness.

Until now it seems that only one attempt to present a valid instrument to characterize the emotional climate (Yurtsever & De Rivera, 2010), but its design and validation suffered from some limitations in terms of supporting the factor structure and considering the influence of local cultural factors. Additionally, being the emotional climate a construct formed by perceptions it is reasonable to think that the emotional intelligence of the involved persons will attribute more or less importance to the same working experiences. So these personality traits should be taken into account.

Purpose of the Study

The purpose of this quantitative correlational research study is to determine the degree to which the emotional climate influences the affective commitment of Peruvian service workers, controlled by the emotional intelligence of them. The independent variables will be the emotional intelligence quotient reported by each worker and the emotional climate index as perceived by each person. The dependent variable will be the individual affective commitment score.

Significance of the Problem

Until now the emotional climate has been conceptualized in broad terms and applied to a nation, schools, prisons, sporting persons, but not significatively to the workplace. One of those studies collected the data sending a survey to small business owners. The survey asked about the intentions they had to improve the emotional climate and the consequences in performance (Ozcelik, Langton & Aldrich, 2001). The authors did not developed neither validated an instrument that could be used in other settings. De Rivera and Yutsever (2010) developed an instrument and validated it in four

organizations but the factor analysis was done with less than five participants per item. Additionally, as per the researches advise, "Further research is also encouraged in countries other than Turkey, since national culture may affect perceptions of the general feelings in organizational situations" (p. 512). Following that direction the emotional climate index defined by Yurtserver and De Rivera will be used as a starting point and validated or modified by a exploratory factor analysis.

The Affective Commitment has been used in some other places outside USA with mixed results. Meyer et al. (2002) reported cases in Korea and Turkey where when the questionnaire was back-translated, as is standard, the three-factor structure was not reproduced. Only when the items were adapted to the local cultures the original structure emerged. Ten years later Meyer et al. (2012) reported much more non USA studies but in Spanish only three in México and one in Spain. Then it is interesting to probe and refine that instrument in our culture.

Nature of the Study

The bases of the research will a constructivism position using empirical methods in a pragmatic implementation. It is assumed that the affective effects exists (ontology) and that it can be described by the human beings (epistemology). The research will try to describe how the working setting contributes to build the worker's perception of the affective characteristics (emotional climate) of his/her job.

The workers samples will be selected from people with no subordinates in service enterprises. In this way the multilevel effects of the social processes being researched will be controlled. In first phase the Yurtsever and De Rivera emotional climate instrument

will be validated. It will be translated and back-translated into Spanish. Then a pilot test will confirm the items are univocally understood and that they describe attributes a worker uses to describe the emotional influences of the environment. An exploratory factor analysis will be conducted to see if the three factor structure of the test, that is trust, hope, and security, is reproduced. If not, a new structured will be proposed.

In the second phase the data collected from the Spanish version of the Meyer y Allen test will be used to confirm the factor structure of affective, normative and continuance scores. Also the correlation between emotional climate and affective commitment will be analyzed. Being both phenomenon related to affects, a good correlation will be support the reliability of the emotional climate instrument. Finally the data collected from the Emotional Quotient Inventory will used to analyze its role in the Emotional Climate – Affective Commitment relationship.

Research Questions

The proposed research questions are:

1. Is the Yurtsever-De Rivera scale for measuring the Emotional Climate valid for Peruvian workers supporting the three factors trust, hope, and security?

2. Is there a significant relationship between workers' Emotional Climate, as measured by the Yurtsever-De Rivera scale, and the Affective Component of their Organizational Commitment, as measured by the Allen-Meyer model?

3. Is there a significant influence of the Emotional Quotient of the workers, as measured by the Bar-On model, moderating the perception of the Emotional Climate felt by them?

Hypothesis

The statistical null hypotheses derived from the research questions are:

Hypothesis 1a: The 28 variables of the Yurtsever-De Rivera model, when taken collectively, don't show significant correlations.

Hypothesis 1b The 28 variables of the Yurtsever-De Rivera model, when analyzed under a scree test, don't show enough loading to suggest a three factors structure.

Hypothesis 1c The resulting factors from the 28 variables of Yurtsever-De Rivera model, don't show enough internal consistency reliability.

Hypothesis 2. There is not a significant relationship between workers' Emotional Climate, as measured by the Yurtsever-De Rivera scale, and the Affective Component of their Organizational Commitment, as measured by the Allen-Meyer model.

Hypothesis 3a. There is not a significant influence of the overall Emotional Quotient Inventory of the workers moderating the perception of the Emotional Climate felt by them.

Hypothesis 3b. There is not a significant influence of the Intrapersonal scale of the Emotional Quotient of the workers moderating the perception of the Emotional Climate felt by them.

Hypothesis 3c. There is not a significant influence of the Interpersonal scale of the Emotional Quotient of the workers moderating the perception of the Emotional Climate felt by them.

Hypothesis 3d. There is not a significant influence of the Stress Management scale of the Emotional Quotient of the workers moderating the perception of the Emotional Climate felt by them.

Hypothesis 3e. There is not a significant influence of the Adaptability scale of the Emotional Quotient of the workers moderating the perception of the Emotional Climate felt by them.

Hypothesis 3f. There is not a significant influence of the General Mood scale of the Emotional Quotient of the workers moderating the perception of the Emotional Climate felt by them.

Theoretical Framework

This study will be based in the Affective Events Theory proposed by Weiss and Cropanzano in 1996. It will justify that work environmental conditions produce an accumulation of a succession of positive or negative affective events that leads to positive or negative affective states in employees that, in turn, precedes attitudinal and behavioral responses, (Ashkanasy, 2005). Based in that theoretical assumption and using a grounded theory approach a set of categories will be discovered and a questionnaire proposed to figure out the emotional climate.Taking into account that the study will use the grounded theory approach to arrive to a set of categories before the design of the instrument. In that sense the grounded theory methodologists (Charmaz, 2006) advise to delay the literature review "to avoid importing preconceived ideas and imposing them on your work. Delaying the review encourages *you* to articulate your ideas" (cursives in the original) p. 165.

The consideration of the Bar-On model of Emotional Intelligence will test the influence of particular sensitivity to emotional events. This sensitivity could produce different perceptions of emotional climate from similar working events.

To confirm that we are measuring emotional reactions is appropriated to correlate the emotional climate results with a well known questionnaire, the Meyer and Allen survey for Commitment. This model established that a commitment to stay in the organization depends of three perceptions: affective, continuance and normative. It is an hypothesis to be tested that positive emotional climates produces affective commitments.

Assumptions

Emotions are short lived events of no more than a fraction of a second. As such are hard to articulate in a vivid and accurate report and it will be an obstacle to study its effects in the working attitudes. But what really affects attitudes and behaviors are the subsequent cognitive appraisal of the situation, or moods. This study will examine the mood that emotional events in the workplace produces and how much it affects the perception, positive or negative, of the working setting. So we assume that moods are more important to the emotional climate than the discrete emotions themselves.

Scope and Limitations

People interviewed could not express freely their perceptions and changes in their attitudes regarding the emotional events they lived. This study will be limited to a sample of workers who doesn't have subordinates and that reports to a first-line supervisor..Only

the influence of his/her supervisor (dyadic relationship) and the influence of the group will be considered. The impact of other levels will be controlled.

Summary

A way to use constructively the emotional capabilities of supervisors leading workers is making them aware of the impact they build in their subordinates. Emotional climate is the name for that impact and this study pretends to define and validate an instrument to characterize that climate.

References

- Ashkanasy, N., & Humphrey, R. (2005). Current Emotion Research in Organizational Behavior. *Emotion Review*,(3)2, pp. 214-224.
- Bar-On, R. /2006). The Bar-On model of emotional-social intelligence (ESI) (Issues in emotional intelligence). Retrieved from Consortium for Research on Emotional Intelligence in Organizations website: www.eiconsortium.org.
- Barsade, S., Brief, A. & Spataro, S. (2003). The affective revolution in organizational: the emergence of a paradigm. In J. Greenberg (Ed.), *Organizational Behavior -The state of science* (pp.1-52). Mahwah, NJ: Lawrence Erlbaum.
- Briner, R. (1999). The Neglect and Importance of Emotion at Work. European Journal of Work and Organizational Psychology. 8 (3), 323–346.
- Charmaz, K. (2006). *Constructing grounded theory: a practical guide through qualitative analysis*. London, England: Sage Publications.
- Cropanzano, R. (2005). Foreword: Workplace emotion: Where we've been, where we're going, and where we ought to be. In C. Hartel, W. Zerbe, & N. Ashkanasy (Eds.), *Emotions in organizational behavior* (pp.1-8). Mahwak, NJ: Lawrence Erlbaum Associates.
- Geher, G. & Renstrom, K. (2004). Measurement issues in emotional intelligence research. In G. Geher (Ed.), *Measuring emotional intelligence: Common ground* and controversy (pp. 3-20). Hauppauge, NY: Nova Science Publishers.

- Härtel, C., Zerbe, W. & Ashkanasy, N. (2005). Organizational behavior: an emotions perspective. In Authors (Eds.), *Emotions in organizational behavior* (pp.1-8).Mahwak, NJ: Lawrence Erlbaum Associates. Retrieved from Kindle version.
- Härtel, C., Gough H, & Härtel G. (2008). Work-group emotional climate, emotion management skills, and service attitudes and performance. *Asia Pacific Journal* of Human Resources, 46(1), 21-37.
- Keltner, D. and Lerner, J. S. (2003). Emotion. In D. Gilbert, S. Fiske, and G. Lindsey (Eds.), *Handbook of Social Psychology* (pp. 312-347). New York, NY: McGraw Hill.
- Loewenstein, G. & Lerner, J. (2002). The role of affect in decision making. In R.J. Davidson, K.R. Scherer, & H.H. Goldsmith (Eds.), *Handbook of affective science* (pp. 619-642). New York, NY; Oxford University Press.
- MacCann, C., Matthews, G., Zeidner, M & Roberts, R. (2004). The assessment of emotional intelligence: On frameworks, fissures, and the future. In G. Geher (Ed.), *Measuring emotional intelligence: Common ground and controversy* (pp. 21-52). Hauppauge, NY: Nova Science Publishers.
- Meyer, J. & Maltin, E. (2010). Employee commitment and well-being: A critical review, theoretical framework and research agenda. *Journal of Vocational Behavior*, 77. 323-337. doi: 10.1016/jjvb.2010.04.007
- Meyer, J., Stanley, D., Herscovitch, L., & Topolnytsky, L. (2002). Affective, continuance, and normative commitment to the organization: A meta-analysis of

antecedents, correlates, and consequences. *Journal of Vocational Behavior*, *61*, 20-52. doi:10.1006/jvbe.2001.1842

- Meyer, J., Stanley, D., Jackson, T., McInnis, K., Maltin, E., & Sheppard, L. (2012).
 Affective, normative, and continuance commitment levels across cultures: A meta-analysis. *Journal of Vocational Behavior*, 80. 225-245.
- Mignonac, K., & Herrbach, O. (2004). Linking work events, affective states, and attitudes: an empirical study of managers' emotions. *Journal of Business and Psychology*, *19*(2).
- Mumby, D. & Putnam, L. The Politics of Emotion: A Feminist Reading of Bounded Rationality. *The Academy of Management Review*, 17(3), 465-486.
- Ozcelik, H., Langton, N., & Aldrich, H.(2001). Does intention to create a positive emotional climate matter? A look at revenue, strategic and outcome growth. Academy of Management Proceedings. Retrieved from http://biblioteca.universia.net/html_bura/ficha/params/title/does-positiveemotional-climate-matter/41852608.html
- Ozcelik, H., Langton, N., & Aldrich, H. (2008). Doing well and doing good: The relationship between leadership practices that facilitate a positive emotional. Journal of Managerial Psychology, 23(2), 186-203.
- De Rivera, J. (1992). Emotional Climate: Social Structure and Emotional Dynamics. International Review of Studies on Emotion. 2, 197-218.

- De Rivera, J. & Yurtsever, G. (2010). National Emotional Climate and the Value of Freedom. *Beliefs and Values*, 2(1), 57-65.
- Schneider B., & Reichers, A. (1983). On the etiology of climates. *Personnel Psychology*, 36. 19-39
- Simon, H. (1955). A behavioral model of rational choice. *The Quarterly Journal of Economics*, 69(1), 99-118.
- Simon, H. (1994). Administrative behavior (4th ed.). New York, NY: Free Press.
- Tagiuri, R. (1968). The concept of organizational climate. In R. Tagiuri & G.H. Litwin, (Eds.), Organizational climate: Explanation of a concept. Boston, MA: Harvard University Press.
- Weiss, H. & Cropanzano, R. (1996). Affective events theory: A theoretical discussion of the structure, causes and consequences of affective experiences at work. *Research in Organizational Behavior, 18,* 1-74.
- Yurtsever, G, & De Rivera, J. (2010). Measuring the emotional climate of an organization. *Perceptual and Motor Skills*, *110*(2), 501-516.